STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Date:

Tuesday 11 January 2022

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Room (B6) – Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Christopher Wellbelove, Councillor Timothy Windle (Chair),
Councillor Pete Elliott and Councillor Jackie Meldrum

Co-optees
Sue Gower MBE and Shajad Hussain

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Wayne Chandai, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Friday 31 December 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually.

For Members of the Public
To join the meeting online, using MS Teams, please contact democracy@lambeth.gov.uk for a link to the
meeting.
If you wish to attend the meeting in person, public access can be made available for limited numbers, but
please contact democracy@lambeth.gov.uk before the meeting so arrangements can be made.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Monday 10 January 2022.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Monday 10 January 2022. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend
the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Declarations of Interest

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on
10 June 2021.

1-4

3

Member Induction 2022

5 - 18

4

Work Programme 2021/22

19 - 26

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Thursday 10 June 2021 at 6.00 pm
Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW

Members Present:

Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Timothy Windle (Chair),
Councillor Pete Elliott and Councillor Jackie Meldrum

Apologies:

Councillor Christopher Wellbelove

Co-optees present
online:

Sue Gower MBE and Shajad Hussain

1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 February 2021 be
approved as a correct record of proceedings.

3

Member Complaints Update
Andrew Pavlou, Principal Lawyer Governance, provided the Committee with an update on
complaints received against members of the Council for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021. It was noted that:
-

The Monitoring Officer had received twenty-one complaints. Sixteen of these were made by
residents against members and five were made by members against other members.

-

All complaints had been investigated informally and had been resolved by the Monitoring
Officer. The matters complained of had not met the Council’s criteria to warrant a formal
investigation.

-

Social media had played a large part in relation to a number of complaints, with
misunderstandings by members and residents about what was and what was not
acceptable.

During the discussion various matters were considered in relation to dealing with, and reporting
on, complaints received against members. Additional information was requested in relation to
trends, satisfaction with the complaints process and comparing data with previous years.
Officers explained these requests would be considered ahead of preparing the annual
complaints report for 2021/22, although it was acknowledged that verifying satisfaction may be
difficult.
It was highlighted that officers would continue to monitor the Members’ Code of Conduct to

Page 2
ensure it remained consistent with good practice and LGA guidance. It was explained that
Members would receive training to ensure understanding and compliance with the Code of
Conduct.
RESOLVED That the report be noted.

4

Councillors' Guide to Handling Intimidation
Christian Scade, Deputy Democratic Services Manager, explained the report presented
provided an opportunity for the Committee to review and reflect on recent Local Government
Association (LGA) guidance in relation to handling intimidation.
It was noted that the LGA guidance covered a range of topics and was designed not to alarm,
but to suggest steps that could be taken to protect those in a public position, including
councillors, and ways to respond should an incident occur.
During the discussion a number of issues were considered, including general advice on
handling intimidation, personal safety, social media, legislation that applied to intimidation,
dealing with a variety of behaviours, balancing freedom of speech and its limitations, the roles
and responsibilities of Councillors and details on how to communicate with residents,

colleagues and officers.
To ensure existing and incoming Councillors were suitably briefed it was agreed that the
extensive LGA guidance should be broken down into bite size themes covering social media,
personal safety and security, and dealing with a variety of different behaviours. A request was
made for specific training for councillors in relation to helping residents with drug, alcohol and
mental health problems. It was noted that existing members would be invited to take part in a
discussion on handling intimidation and that this would be used to help develop the May 2022
Member Learning and Development Induction Programme.
RESOLVED That the guidance from the Local Government Association, in relation to handling
intimidation, be noted and the actions highlighted above, in relation to member learning and
development, be supported.

5

Work Programme 2021/22
The report presented provided information on the proposed Standards Committee work
programme for 2021/22. Officers highlighted the following points:
-

The Committee was responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by
councillors and non-elected co-opted representatives.

-

Although there was not a requirement for the Committee to have a work programme it was
considered good practice to have one as it helped to demonstrate work being done by the
Committee through the year.

During the discussion the importance of possible changes to the Members’ Code of Conduct
and the protocol on councillor and officer relations were highlighted. It was agreed that an item
on member learning and development, including guidance on handling intimidation and plans for
the May 2022 induction, should be considered in draft by the Committee in November 2021.

Page 3
RESOLVED That, subject to an item on member learning and development being considered by
Committee in November 2021, the proposed work programme for 2021/22 be approved.

The meeting ended at 6.36 pm
CHAIR
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 9 November 2021
Date of Despatch: Tuesday 20 July 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Wayne Chandai
Tel: 020 7926 0029
E-mail: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

STANDARDS COMMITTEE, 11 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Member Induction 2022
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Tasnim Shawkat, Interim Director of Legal and Governance
Contact for enquiries: Christian Scade, Deputy Democratic Services Manager, Legal and
Governance, 020 7926 0045, cscade@lambeth.gov.uk
REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the proposed induction programme and arrangements for newly elected and
returning Councillors following the May 2022 local elections.
The draft programme, included at Appendix 1, is presented in draft for consideration by Standards
Committee. This is to help facilitate its development, its subsequent delivery and to ensure it promotes
high standards of conduct.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no additional financial implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To consider and comment on the proposed induction arrangements set out in the report, including
Appendix 1.

2.

To support the establishment of a cross-party working group to facilitate the development and
delivery of the Member Induction and ongoing Member Learning and Development Programme.

Page 6
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The role of a Councillor is complex and challenging and the political, legislative, and local
landscape, in which they operate, is constantly changing.

1.2

Communities have high expectations of their elected representatives from the day of their election
and throughout their period of office. Professor Colin Copus highlights in a manifesto for councillors
that:
“The public expect local councillors to solve personal case work issues; address local community
problems, from the mundane to the complex; provide access to the council; and take action to
force change in the policies and practices of the council.”

1.3

Therefore, it is essential that elected Members are given every assistance to be able to quickly and
successfully navigate the numerous aspects of local government.

1.4

The forthcoming Local Government elections on 5 May 2022 will necessitate an induction
programme for new and returning Councillors. The overarching objective of the programme will be
to provide Councillors with an understanding of how to discharge their role as an elected
representative of Lambeth and to provide an understanding of the governance framework of the
council.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

A draft programme, setting out the Member Induction Programme, is set out at Appendix 1. This
has been created using the following principles:
-

Prioritised and phased, focusing on the most essential session sessions early on.

-

Digital by default and self-managing, suing online tools as much as possible and giving
councillors a greater ability to “learn and discover” at a time of their own choosing.

-

Integrated with the wider member development programme.

-

High quality, refined through feedback and evaluation, learning as we go.

2.2

Officers have also created a detailed project plan which has assigned key tasks to officers/teams
across the organisation. This, together with the proposal (set out in 5.1) to establish a cross party
working group, will help facilitate the development and delivery of the programme.

2.3

It should also be noted that the draft programme, by its very nature and timescale, contains some
content which is indicative and subject to change. Members of Standards Committee are asked to
comment on the programme and also advise on how the programme should continue in the
months leading up to the election in May 2022.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

The Member Induction, and ongoing Member Learning and Development Programme, will be
delivered by a mix of officer time, using in-house resources, and from externally funded sources.
All costs will be met from existing budgets.

Page 7
4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, in developing plans for the
Member Induction and ongoing Member Learning and Development Programme it should be
highlighted that:
-

The Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to ensure good governance.

-

The Council has a duty under Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by its members. As set out in Part VI of the Constitution, the
Standards Committee is responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct
by councillors and non-elected co-opted representatives.

-

Some Members, including Members of Planning Applications Committee and Licensing SubCommittee, are required to attend designated training to ensure they are up to date with
current legislation and practice. Decisions made by Members who have not attended such
training could be open to challenge.

4.2

The Member Induction and Member Learning and Development Programme will support the
Council, the Standards Committee, and the Monitoring Officer in ensuring these duties and
responsibilities are discharged.

4.3

There are no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

In addition to seeking feedback from Group Leaders/Whips and senior officers it is proposed that a
cross party working group be established to help finalise the development and subsequent delivery
of both the Member Induction and ongoing Member Learning and Development Programme.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Access to a comprehensive induction is vital to ensure both newly elected, and returning, members
are fully conversant with all aspects of the various roles they undertake. A comprehensive
programme of training and development and access to online resources and officer assistance will
support sound decision making and avoid reputational risk to the Council.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

Public authorities are required to have due regard to the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty
(Equality Act 2010) when making decisions and setting policies.

7.2

While there are no specific equalities implications arising from this report, all induction and member
learning and development sessions will be open and accessible to all Councillors. Information will
be provided in a range of formats. For example, taught sessions, e-learning, and information packs
to try and accommodate different learning styles. In addition, there will be opportunities for
Councillors to indicate whether they have further development needs. Before finalising
arrangements, officers will explore the most appropriate times and locations for sessions and how
Councillors wish to be communicated with and developed.

Page 8
8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

There are no direct implications arising from this report.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The induction programme has been structured to empower all Councillors to take a full and active
role as community and council leaders. A key emphasis of the programme will be the partnership
between Councillors and officers and the Council and key partners in delivering services.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
A roadmap to May 2022 is set out as part of Appendix 1.

Page 9
AUDIT TRAIL
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Andy Wilson
Tasnim Shawkat,
Interim Director Legal and
Governance
Hamant Bharadia,
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Wayne Chandai, Head of
the Chief Executive’s Office
and Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Performance

28.10.21

For Info

Legal and Governance

22.10.21

For Info

Finance and Property

22.10.21

22.10.21

Finance
Summary

Legal and Governance

22.10.21

26.10.21

None

Legal and Governance

22.10.21

27.10.21

Appendix 1

Lambeth Directorate

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

01.11.2021
01.11.2021

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Draft Member Induction Programme

No
No
N/A
N/A
A manifesto for councillors – LGIU

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

MEMBER INDUCTION
PROGRAMME 2022

Page 12

Principal one: Prioritise and Phase
Workshops and training would be grouped into the
following categories, phased across the term
Compulsory training:
- Cllrs MUST complete this training to continue their duties as a Cllr

Ongoing training:
- Cllrs SHOULD be undertaking this throughout their elected position to ensure they
are up-to-date with all issues, current affairs. This could be taken throughout the 4
year period.

Page 13

Essential training:
- Cllrs SHOULD attend this training as it would immensely benefit their development

Principal two: Digital by default

Page 14

- Greater reliance on tech
- Utilise the LGA Cllr learning platform
- Workshops to be delivered virtually where possible
and recorded for future use.
- Develop existing sharepoint site that hosts all
information and guidance for Cllrs
- Support and guide Cllrs on developing digital ways of
working

Principal three: Integrate into wider programme

Workshop themes and suggestions. Work in Progress.

Page 15

Principal four: Learn as we go
Meet with key
officers
Meet with officers to determine ICT, HR
and Payroll requirements. Ensuring we
have all processes updated and ready for
intake of new cllrs.
02

Identify training and
workshops /identify
providers

Confirm workshops
and Providers

Member Development Working Group to
identify and develop a programme with
Officers and agreeing which providers to
be contacted
04

Finalise practical
arrangements

Prepare programme of confirmed
workshops and schedule in providers

Deploy officer leads for each theme
of training and sign off all the
arrangements. This will be overseen
by Head of Dem Services

06

08

2022

2021

Oct

Nov

Dec

01

03

Develop
Project Plan

Standards
Committee

To review induction plan and prepare
Project Plan for the induction and
member Development programme

Standards committee to comment and
approve plan, including the setting up
of a Member Development Working
Group (to meet monthly).

Jan

Feb

05

Confirm practical
arrangements
ICT offer to be finalised for Members,
to review Payroll and HR
requirements. Approach to be agreed
for non returning members by the
Working Group.

Mar

Apr

07

Standards
Committee
To finally sign off the Training
Programme and Member Induction
2022

May

Page 16

Aug

07

Induction Day

Principal four: Feedback/Evaluate
Review feedback from previous training and welcome ideas
from groups
Consider views from Standard’s Committee and Working
Group throughout the programme
Page 17

Previous ideas that worked well
• Support pack/session for members not re-elected or standing down: Those who didn’t stand for
re-election or didn’t get elected in. We will help with how to get back to not being a Cllr, interview
and CV help, transition from being a Cllr to not being a Cllr and a mental health session.
• Buddy system: Democratic Services and Council Officers to create a buddy system to support new
Cllrs into the world of being an elected Member.

Next steps:
• Make amendments/include comments following Standards Committee meeting
• Ensure the MLD Working Group is set up to meet Monthly from December 2021-July 2022.

Page 18

• Member handbook: Electronic this time though.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

STANDARDS COMMITTEE, 11 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Work Programme 2021/22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Interim Director of Legal and Governance, Tasnim Shawkat
Contact for enquiries: Christian Scade, Deputy Democratic Services Manager, Legal and
Governance, 020 7926 0045, CScade@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides details of the proposed Standards Committee work programme for 2021/22. The
Committee is asked to review these proposals, set out at Appendix 1, and to identify any other items to
be included.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To consider and approve the proposed work programme for 2021/22, set out at Appendix 1,
making any changes the Committee considers appropriate.

1.

CONTEXT

1.1

As set out in Part VI of the Constitution, Standards Committee is responsible for promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct by councillors and non-elected co-opted representatives.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

There is no requirement for the Committee to have a work programme. However, it is considered
good practice to have one as it helps demonstrate the work being done by the Committee through
the year.

2.2

An updated work programme for 2021/22 is attached at Appendix 1 for consideration. This is
designed to assist the Committee meet its objectives, set out in the Terms of Reference, and to
ensure the Council complies with its obligations under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to
promote and maintain high standards of conduct.

Page 20
3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

As set out above, the Council has a duty under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote
and maintain high standards of conduct by its members and to adopt a code of conduct that is
consistent with the Nolan Principles. It is anticipated that a planned work programme to deal with
the specific roles and functions of the Committee, as set out in the Constitution, will assist
compliance with this duty.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Not applicable.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

There are no risk implications arising from this report.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report. However, members
are reminded that a breach of the statutory provisions of the Member Code of Conduct is a criminal
offence.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental

9.1

Not applicable.
Health

9.2

Not applicable.
Corporate Parenting

9.3

Not applicable.
Staffing and accommodation

9.4

Not applicable.
Responsible Procurement

9.5

Not applicable.

Page 21
10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 An updated work programme, together with meeting dates, is attached at Appendix 1. However,
the work programme is intended to be flexible and can cover additional areas which the Committee
is particularly concerned about, as they arise.

Page 22
Audit Trail
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Andy Wilson
Hamant Bharadia, AD
Strategic Finance
Tasnim Shawkat, Interim
Director, Legal and
Governance (Monitoring
Officer)
Andrew Pavlou, Principal
Lawyer (Governance)
Wayne Chandai, Head of
the Chief Executive’s Office
and Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Performance

22.10.21

For Info

Finance and Property

13.10.21

22.10.21

Legal and Governance

13.10.21

For Info

Legal and Governance

13.10.21

26.10.21

None

Legal and Governance

13.10.21

27.10.21

None

Lambeth Directorate

Comments in
paragraph:

None

Page 23
Report History
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

01.11.21
01.11.21
No
No
Not applicable
Not applicable
None
Appendix 1 – Work Programme

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25
Appendix 1
Standards Committee
Work Programme 2021/22
10 June 2021
Update on Member
Complaints

To receive a report on complaints against members

Andrew
Pavlou

Handling intimidation

To review and reflect on recent LGA guidance
(click here) in relation to handling intimidation

Christian
Scade

Future
Work Programme

To consider and approve a future work programme

Christian
Scade

9 November 2021
Member Learning
and Development

To receive an update on the Member Learning and
Development programme, including plans for the
May 2022 induction, to ensure this helps promote
and maintain high standards of conduct.

Wayne
Chandai

This will include information on the suggestions that
were put forward by Committee in June 2021 (click
here) on handling intimidation covering social
media, personal safety and security, and dealing
with a variety of different behaviours.
January 2022 (Date TBC)
National standards
picture

To keep Members informed of the national picture
on standards issues affecting Local Government

Monitoring
Officer

Code of Conduct

To receive a report setting out possible changes to
the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct in
response to the review of the model Code of
Conduct by the LGA

Monitoring
Officer

Items for Future Meetings
Arrangements for
Member Complaints
Councillor and
officer relations

To review arrangements for dealing with Member
complaints, including from a resident’s perspective
To review the current protocol

Monitoring
Officer
Monitoring
Officer

Annual Complaints
Report

Additional information was requested by the
Committee in June 2021 (click here) in relation to
trends, satisfaction with the complaints process and
comparing data with previous years

Andrew
Pavlou

This page is intentionally left blank

